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          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: My name is

          3  Council Member Letitia James, and obviously I am not

          4  Tom White. He is the Chairman of the Committee on

          5  Economic Development and he is stuck in traffic, so

          6  as a member of this Committee, we will being the

          7  hearing today, which will focus on Intro. No. 779, a

          8  local law to amend the Administrative Code of the

          9  City of New York in relation to regionally

         10  significant projects in empire zones.

         11                 In 1986, the State established the

         12  empire zone program formerly known as the Economic

         13  Development Zone Program, through which a variety of

         14  tax benefits to companies who move into and/or

         15  expand their operations within prescribed geographic

         16  areas known as empire zones. There are 11 such zones

         17  in the City.

         18                 In 2005, the State enacted

         19  legislation that significantly restructured the

         20  empire zone program and created the concept of a

         21  regionally significant project, a business

         22  enterprise that could be associated with an empire

         23  zone, so as to be eligible for benefits, although

         24  not physically located within a zone. If it is

         25  consistent with that Empire Zone's business plan.
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          2                 In order to qualify, different types

          3  of businesses would be expected to create a certain

          4  net number of new jobs. A manufacturing company

          5  would have to have an estimate of creating 50 or

          6  more jobs.

          7                 The Committee is interested in Intro.

          8  No. 779, in various aspects of regionally

          9  significant projects in empire zones.

         10                 To this end, the Committee intends to

         11  raise a number of relevant questions and issues

         12  regarding regionally significant projects.

         13                 I would like to thank the

         14  Administration, the Department of Small Business

         15  Services, Bronx Westchester Tempering Corporation,

         16  the local zone administrator for the Hunts Point

         17  Empire Zone, residents, elected officials and

         18  advocates for testifying today, and I look forward

         19  to a productive hearing on this important issue, and

         20  I'd like to thank Council Member Oliver Koppell for

         21  joining me here today. I believe he is a sponsor of

         22  this legislation.

         23                 Council Member Koppell, do you have

         24  some opening remarks?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Very briefly,
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          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 This enterprise is proposing to set

          4  up a manufacturing facility in my district in a part

          5  of the district that is under-developed and there is

          6  no, not only no opposition to this from the local

          7  area, but strong support from everybody who knows

          8  about it.

          9                 We want to welcome this business. I

         10  know that the owner is going to testify, and I

         11  believe he had options of moving elsewhere. He

         12  currently operates a business in Westchester County

         13  outside of the Bronx, and we want to welcome him to

         14  the Bronx. The Empire Zone Program offers

         15  substantial benefits to people who qualify and he

         16  does.

         17                 The zone board has approved this to

         18  the relevant project to their mission, and so I am

         19  pleased that the Committee is considering this, and

         20  I hope we will move it forward as quickly as

         21  possible.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Thank you,

         24  Council member.

         25                 We had previously passed a similar
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          2  legislation in the Northeast Queens to benefit a

          3  business, Bimi's right? It was a bill that was put

          4  forth by Council Member Leroy Comrie, and I believe

          5  this is a similar measure, and I'm confident that it

          6  will get the support of the City Council.

          7                 The first witness is Leslie Ramos,

          8  Mayor's Office of Industrial and Manufacturing

          9  Business.

         10                 Ms. Ramos, please.

         11                 You may begin whenever you're

         12  situated.

         13                 MS. RAMOS: Okay, thank you.

         14                 Good afternoon.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: When the

         16  light is on, it's on.

         17                 MS. RAMOS: It's not.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES:

         19  Sergeant-At-Arms, can you?

         20                 MS. RAMOS: Okay, great.

         21                 Well, good afternoon, Chairwoman

         22  James, and members of the Committee on Economic

         23  Development.

         24                 My name is Leslie Ramos, I am the

         25  Director of the Mayor's Office of Industrial and
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          2  Manufacturing Businesses, which is responsible for

          3  the coordination of the New York City's empire zone

          4  program.

          5                 I am joined by Jared Walkowitz. He is

          6  a New York City Empire Zones Coordinator. He's

          7  actually new to the assignment and we are really

          8  happy to have them.

          9                 I am pleased to testify before you

         10  today regarding Intro. 779, which will authorize the

         11  designation of Bronx-Westchester Tempering

         12  Corporation as a Regionally Significant Project.

         13                 The Empire Zones Program was created

         14  by the New York State Legislature in 1986 to

         15  stimulate private investment and job creation

         16  through a variety of State tax incentives, including

         17  wage tax credits, investment tax credits and real

         18  property tax credits. Our New York City businesses

         19  have benefitted greatly from this program,

         20  collecting on average $60 million in State tax

         21  benefits each year.

         22                 In April 2005, the State Legislature

         23  adopted legislation extending the Empire Zone

         24  Program until June 30th, 2011, and, among other

         25  changes, created a provision allowing for Regionally
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          2  Significant Project designation. This designation

          3  allows local businesses outside the distinct

          4  geographic boundaries of an Empire Zone to tap into

          5  valuable State tax credits.

          6                 To ensure that the Regionally

          7  Significant Project designation is used prudently,

          8  the State Legislature has created an authorization

          9  process that involves the State, the local

         10  Legislature, some administrative boards and

         11  environmental review process.

         12                 Moreover, to qualify for designation

         13  the business must be either:

         14                 1) A manufacturer creating 50 or more

         15  full-time jobs.

         16                 An agribusiness, high-tech or

         17  bio-tech company creating 20 jobs and making an

         18  investment of $10 million.

         19                 A financial, insurance or

         20  distribution entity creating 300 or more jobs; or

         21                 A clean energy research and

         22  development enterprise.

         23                 Additionally, there is an "other"

         24  category referenced in the General Municipal Law

         25  that has yet to be fully defined by the Empire State
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          2  Development Corporation.

          3                 Over 82 Regionally Significant

          4  Projects have been designated throughout the State.

          5  The bill before us today would authorize an

          6  application for Bronx-Westchester Tempering

          7  Corporation and New York City's second Regionally

          8  Significant Project.

          9                 Bronx-Westchester Tempering

         10  Corporation will operate a manufacturing and

         11  processing glass business that will transform

         12  ordinary glass into the shatter-proof material known

         13  as tempered glass.

         14                 This product is used in storefronts,

         15  skylights, escalator handrails in malls, and in many

         16  residential features, such as frameless shower

         17  doors. Its product will be distributed within the

         18  tri-state area, where there are few competitors.

         19                 Designation of this business as a

         20  Regionally Significant Project will support our

         21  City's manufacturing job base. Bronx-Westchester

         22  Tempering Corporation projects the creation of 60

         23  new full-time workers, including machine operators,

         24  foremen, and "autoCad" drawers.

         25                 In addition, the company will be
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          2  making a significant investment in equipment, and

          3  building acquisition and improvement.

          4                 I understand that you will be hearing

          5  testimony from the owner, Mr. Dunlea, this

          6  afternoon, to hear how important business like

          7  Bronx-Westchester Tempering mean to our economy and

          8  how the Regionally Significant Project designation

          9  can help them operate competitively and grow.

         10                 Thank you again for this opportunity

         11  to appear before you today, and I will be glad to

         12  answer any questions you may have.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Thank you.

         14  Council Member Koppell, any questions?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: No

         17  questions at this time. Thank you for your

         18  testimony.

         19                 MS. RAMOS: The next witnesses panel

         20  will be Mr. Tim Dunlea and Robert Greenberg.

         21                 MR. GREENBERG: My name is Bob

         22  Greenberg, and I'm the consultant and the authorized

         23  representative for this project, trying to get the

         24  Empire Zone Certification.

         25                 I actually wear three hats but they
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          2  all come together. One is I'm the Director of the

          3  Job Development for the Urban League, which mostly

          4  works on moving people from welfare to work, people

          5  who have been recently incarcerated, getting them to

          6  work. For the IRS I'm a principle investigator for

          7  the past ten years in educating low-income working

          8  poor, as to financial literacy, things like the

          9  Earned Income Tax Credit and so on.

         10                 These things all come together into

         11  the field of economic development where we're trying

         12  to move communities ahead.

         13                 And, so, I've worked with Tim before

         14  as another business of his is already an Empire Zone

         15  business. But this came about as a new law, as

         16  Leslie was talking about, came into effect in '05

         17  that created the regionally significant project. One

         18  of the partners in this business is from New Jersey,

         19  and he was aware of something called the enterprise

         20  zone system in New Jersey, and I have several

         21  clients in New Jersey as well, and the people at

         22  Perth Amboy came to me and wanted to have this

         23  business there.

         24                 I thought about it, and then I

         25  decided to come to my friend Jeremie Sauter, the
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          2  Empire Zone Coordinator and business wiz, because I

          3  felt that Hunts Point would be a very good fit for

          4  this business, and would work well with Mr. Dunlea,

          5  his partners and everyone else, to get this

          6  legislation passed, because this is simply about

          7  three things: jobs, jobs, jobs, and that's all I've

          8  been about for the past decade. And this is where we

          9  have jobs that are going to pay more than minimum

         10  wage, they will be long-term jobs, there will be

         11  full-time jobs, there will be jobs with a career

         12  path, and I, as from my other backgrounds, could not

         13  see how anyone would turn such a thing down.

         14                 I would think it would be embraced,

         15  supported and in fact sought after. So, I brought

         16  this to him and his partners and said this is a

         17  process we have to go through. It's a long process.

         18  It's not easy. It's nine months to a year, and we're

         19  coming up to that now, and they've been literally

         20  holding off on starting this business because

         21  particularly in these economic times, when people

         22  are mortgaging their homes to start a new business,

         23  as these people have, these incentives aren't just,

         24  they're not icing on the cake any longer, they're

         25  required in order to get the business off the ground
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          2  and to keep it growing.

          3                 So, that's what I did. I took it to

          4  Jeremie. He's been working it through, with Ms.

          5  Infante. I happen to be a member of the Hunts Point

          6  Chamber, so I don't know if I --

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: You have a

          8  lot of jobs.

          9                 MR. GREENBERG: Excuse me?

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: You have a

         11  lot of jobs.

         12                 MR. GREENBERG: Sixty is a lot of

         13  jobs, but they're good jobs.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: No, you

         15  have a lot of jobs.

         16                 MR. GREENBERG: Oh, I have a lot of

         17  jobs. I have a lot of kids in graduate school. And I

         18  just, I've been excited about this from the

         19  beginning, because it's a convergence of everything.

         20  It's economic development, it's people coming in --

         21  in Tim's business now, people come in and he hires

         22  people from the Urban League, they may come in at

         23  eight or nine bucks an hour, but they are trained

         24  and they move up a ladder. And I know a couple of

         25  people who have some ownership in his business, I'm
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          2  telling secrets out of school, started that way,

          3  they came off the street, you don't get that for

          4  most people. But you get it from this guy. Thanks.

          5                 MR. DUNLEA: Okay, good afternoon.

          6  I'll be a little nervous because I don't get in

          7  front of a mike that often.

          8                 But I guess we're happy to be at this

          9  point that at least we have gotten this far. You

         10  know, I have two other partners, and what happened

         11  was when we wanted to expand, we could have gone

         12  some place else, and the best place was in the Bronx

         13  because it was local, and I had worked with Bob

         14  before and he said that he knew the people down in

         15  Hunts Point, which is Mr. Fonte and Jeremie, and we

         16  went down to meet them and we said we had this

         17  business, we want to start, but we're going to need

         18  some help. We're going to need some help.

         19                 We're not asking for money, but we're

         20  asking, you know, for some of the benefits that I

         21  receive in the Empire Zone and which is in Mount

         22  Vernon, and Bob said, you know what? Let's go to the

         23  Bronx, they have a bigger work pool, you know, there

         24  is more help there and the building that we found

         25  was affordable, even though it was in -- that it's
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          2  in an area that is pretty distressed, it needs a

          3  tremendous amount of money, you know, put into it,

          4  but it's some place we could start.

          5                 You know, as Bob said, I've had

          6  several people come to work with me that if they

          7  couldn't read a ruler, or know anything about C&C

          8  equipment, and that's all stuff we teach people when

          9  they come to work with us.

         10                 I've had probably, I don't know, six

         11  or seven people start out and go on to college. I've

         12  let people take half days to go to school. You know,

         13  and some of them stay with me because they can't

         14  find a better paying job. You know, there is no IT

         15  jobs out there. And, you know, the thing with Hunts

         16  Point, the benefits are, you know, as a kid I always

         17  knew that Hunts Point as a meat market, and loading

         18  trucks with meat. But here we teach people skills.

         19  If you leave my shop, you can go work for a

         20  carpenter, a plumber, or you can go work anywhere

         21  because you have those hands-on skills and you

         22  taught them. So, we're looking to improve the

         23  neighborhood.

         24                 I think George Llanos is here, he's

         25  also been a tremendous amount of help, and George
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          2  can testify that they've been down there with dump

          3  trucks five, six times just getting rid of all the

          4  garbage. It's costing the City a tremendous amount

          5  of money just to keep this area clean, and if we're

          6  there, we're not going to allow it.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Right.

          8                 MR. DUNLEA: You know, we're going to

          9  clean the place up. We're extremely local, as far

         10  as, you know, most of my guys come on the subway to

         11  work because who can afford gasoline? I'm going to

         12  be on the subway soon. You know, so we are local to

         13  the trains and the subways and the buses, and you

         14  know, we feel that we can even reach beyond the 60

         15  jobs at some point, you know?

         16                 But we need to get started. You know,

         17  we're working with NYSERDA, and we're going to be

         18  working with Workforce 1 and any other, you know, if

         19  Mr. Koppell's district or anybody else has job

         20  fairs, you know, it's so hard to get any help

         21  now-a-days, so normally I've trained everybody in my

         22  business, not many people know, you know, how to cut

         23  glass and, you know, CNCs and the Autocad that we

         24  do, so it works well for us to work with them

         25  because it gives us a bigger job pool, you know?
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          2                 All three of us have, you know,

          3  invested a lot of our own money. We're all taking a

          4  risk, but we think it's worth it.

          5                 And, you know, there is nobody in

          6  Westchester, the Bronx, Southern Connecticut,

          7  Rockland County or Manhattan doing this, this

          8  tempering business. So, you know, just an example,

          9  two, three weeks ago, I had to go out to Brooklyn,

         10  and by the time I drove out there, and got past the

         11  GWB and the Triborough and BQE and unloaded and came

         12  back, it was five hours, it was a half a tank of gas

         13  and it was $40 in tolls.

         14                 So, you know, we're ready to put

         15  people to work. We just want somebody to help us a

         16  little bit. We want somebody to work with us.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Mr. Dunlea

         18  and Mr. Greenberg, thank you for your testimony, and

         19  I know that with the support of Council Member

         20  Koppell, I am confident that this bill will be

         21  passed.

         22                 However, there has been a lot of

         23  criticism recently with respect to empire zones, and

         24  the criticism is that companies are getting tax

         25  credits for businesses that they would expand

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  ordinarily, and, two, that they're not creating the

          3  jobs as required. What is your position with respect

          4  to that? Or what is your comments with regards to

          5  those criticisms?

          6                 MR. DUNLEA: Well, I can answer that.

          7  I've been working with literally hundreds. Those

          8  criticisms I think were more valid years ago, and a

          9  fellow who you probably all know by the name of

         10  Bradsky, leveled a lot of those. And they were

         11  valid, because people were getting paid tens of

         12  thousands of dollars for hiring one or two people at

         13  minimum wage. But the way the program is structured

         14  now is that you actually have to do something in

         15  order to get an incentive. You have to actually hire

         16  people to get a $1,500 credit. You have to hire a

         17  so-called targeted person, someone from welfare,

         18  someone who is a veteran or whatever, to get a

         19  $3,000 credit.

         20                 You have to buy property, improve

         21  property, et cetera, in order to get credits for

         22  that. So, I think the abusive days are over. The

         23  last part of this is you have to do an annual report

         24  now in the Empire Zone called the "Business Annual

         25  Report," and it's not something that's just handed.
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          2  As of now, the Director of the Program, Randy Coburn

          3  and Bill Lauster, who is one of the Chief Counsels

          4  up in Albany, to actually read these things, and

          5  they say what did you actually do compared to what

          6  you say you were going to do? And over the past two

          7  years, 35 percent of all businesses received, saying

          8  you're in jeopardy of being decertified because you

          9  didn't do what you said you were going to do. So,

         10  it's whipped a lot of people into shape, and that's

         11  not going to be the case here.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: And will

         13  most of the employees be local Bronx residents?

         14                 MR. DUNLEA: I believe so. That's what

         15  most of mine are now.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Go ahead.

         17                 MR. DUNLEA: I'm sorry. It's an issue

         18  of jobs. This oven is 70 feet long, it's big

         19  equipment, it's 12,000 pound forklift, and there are

         20  large sheets of glass, it's not like you can do this

         21  with two people or five people or ten people.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: What

         23  training will you provide?

         24                 MR. DUNLEA: Well, first of all, you

         25  have to know how to go from inches to millimeters,
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          2  because all of these machines are in millimeters,

          3  and half of the people that came to me in the

          4  beginning didn't even know how to read a ruler.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Half of the

          6  City Council members don't know the difference

          7  between those.

          8                 MR. DUNLEA: So, there is definitely

          9  that.

         10                 Obviously, when you're doing tempered

         11  glass, you're going from, whether you call it three

         12  millimeter to 19 millimeter, or you want to call it

         13  one-eighth glass up to one-inch glass, and all of

         14  that has to be calibrated and figured, which means

         15  that every piece of glass, since every manufacturer

         16  has a little different thickness, needs to have a

         17  micrometer put to it. These are all things that

         18  people need to learn, you know?

         19                 Also, our tolerances are less than

         20  plus minus of 16, so you know, it's not like you can

         21  you can guess what you're doing.

         22                 You know, also with the polishing

         23  machines and the beveling machines and mitering

         24  machines, that all has to go to the degree of which

         25  the glass is and for the switch-over to learn how to
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          2  do that.

          3                 So, now-a-days, no matter what you

          4  do, you almost become a computer operator with the

          5  new equipment.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: And do your

          7  employees receive other benefits besides just

          8  salary? Health benefits?

          9                 MR. DUNLEA: Yes. I give health

         10  benefits through Healthy New York right now. We also

         11  have a Sar Set Program (phonetic). You know, not

         12  everybody wants to go into it. Some people want

         13  their money on Friday. I've got some guys who say,

         14  you know, we're putting in with you, and they go, I

         15  just want my money.

         16                 But it's all there, we give vacation.

         17  We give holiday. I think I'm more than fair when I

         18  hear what a lot of people do.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: And it's my

         20  understanding that the law requires you to create 50

         21  jobs, but you project 60 and above; is that correct?

         22                 MR. DUNLEA: Well, I mean, we have to

         23  start somewhere. We're figuring we're going to start

         24  with 12 people. There's a huge learning curve on

         25  this, just the learning of the oven to really get it
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          2  up and going is probably like a month or so. So,

          3  we're going to have to get some people in there to

          4  learn the oven and the automated cutting machines

          5  and stuff like that, because you don't want to take

          6  off in a business and say you can do everything

          7  until you learn your equipment.

          8                 Once the equipment is, you know, we

          9  feel comfortable with where we are, most temperers

         10  have well over 70 people working for them, and we

         11  believe we can get to that position or greater.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Do you plan

         13  on creating your employees from one facility or the

         14  other?

         15                 MR. DUNLEA: No, I don't have enough

         16  health right now.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Okay.

         18                 Council Member Koppell, any

         19  questions?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, I have a

         21  few.

         22                 First of all, there are substantial

         23  tax benefits, both income tax credits and real

         24  estate tax credits and sales tax credits available.

         25  Do you feel these credits are necessary to you in
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          2  order to open this business?

          3                 MR. DUNLEA: We've spent an awful lot

          4  of money, I could tell you that.

          5                 I think that, you know, we can use

          6  them now with the way the economy is going. You

          7  know, since I came to Hunts Point and to see you,

          8  Mr. Koppell, fuel has doubled, energy has doubled,

          9  glass is going up 40 percent. It would be a struggle

         10  right now if we didn't have these benefits. It would

         11  be quite a struggle because contractors are slow,

         12  there is a lot of people not working right now. So,

         13  yes, I think we have to have them to continue.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr.

         15  Greenberg? Is it Greenberg? Is that correct?

         16                 MR. GREENBERG: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Have you

         18  figured out what kind of advantage this produces for

         19  --

         20                 MR. GREENBERG: The advantage will

         21  allow Tim to move -- to get to the 60 people he's

         22  going to have to go from one shift to a second shift

         23  and ultimately a third shift, and without the

         24  incentives, they won't have the ability to do it.

         25  It's as simple as that.
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          2                 The incentives create cash in the

          3  end, and they will need the cash for the expansion.

          4  As he said, this is an all electric business. That's

          5  why it's a clean business. There is no smoke coming

          6  out of anywhere.

          7                 But as we know, electric rates are

          8  just going to continually go up up up. There is no

          9  way he can pass that off and remain competitive, so,

         10  therefore, he needs to have other ways to defray

         11  these costs if he is to stay in business.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And if you

         13  were to move to New Jersey, would you be eligible to

         14  get these benefits in New Jersey?

         15                 MR. GREENBERG: They have different

         16  benefits. Their sales tax is 100 percent exempt. In

         17  New York State only State sales tax is exempt.

         18                 They have more work with grants,

         19  outright grants, called BEEP (phonetic) grants,

         20  which we don't have here. So, there is a trade off

         21  of one type for another type.

         22                 But as I said, I've always felt that

         23  working here, in the Bronx in particular, is a

         24  better atmosphere for many reasons, including or

         25  especially the workforce, because the workforce is
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          2  key.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What would

          4  happen if we didn't approve this?

          5                 Maybe Mr. Dunlea could talk about

          6  that. What would happen if we didn't approve this?

          7                 MR. DUNLEA: Are you speaking to me,

          8  sir?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         10                 MR. DUNLEA: I'm not really sure.

         11                 You know, what happened was, you

         12  know, I could have went to Mount Vernon and just got

         13  a business or rented a building and got the benefits

         14  because we know the amount of people we're going to

         15  hire. But we came down to Hunts Point and they asked

         16  us to come to them. They said, yeah, we want a

         17  manufacturing facility. We want these jobs. That's

         18  why I'm in the Bronx, because they wanted me.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Could you

         20  develop this facility in Hunts Point, in the Hunts

         21  Point area, where the economic zone actually is

         22  right now?

         23                 MR. DUNLEA: Probably. But we wouldn't

         24  have found the building.

         25                 You see, we tried, when we looked at
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          2  the whole project we looked at the building, we

          3  looked at you know, location, proximity to where

          4  this business could probably thrive better than

          5  being closer to Brooklyn. And you know, when we went

          6  and laid it out to Mr. Fonte and to Mr. Jeremie and

          7  they saw the building and the neighborhood, it all

          8  worked beautiful.

          9                 So, I mean, I have hours and days and

         10  a lot of time in this, and I just went and rented a

         11  building in Mount Vernon.

         12                 I didn't really need to be going

         13  through all of this, but we thought this was the

         14  best path.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: One of the

         16  reasons I've asked this question, no secret is that

         17  my colleague who represents the Hunts Point area

         18  says why should I help a business located in the

         19  North Bronx? I want them to come to the South Bronx.

         20  So, what answer can we give her on that?

         21                 MR. DUNLEA: The same answer I gave to

         22  the Director of the Perth Amboy UEZ, the Urban

         23  Enterprize Zone, is that it happens to work best for

         24  having this business in the North Bronx, but it does

         25  not preclude people coming from the South Bronx to
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          2  work there.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And as I

          4  understand it, you're not having to build a new

          5  building where you're going to locate? It's not a

          6  brand new building you're building?

          7                 MR. DUNLEA: That's correct. We're

          8  going into a building that we're going to have to

          9  fix up and put a significant investment into,

         10  although, you know, we're not IBM, there is only so

         11  much money we have.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Is it less

         13  expensive to occupy this building that you're going

         14  to go into than to build a new building?

         15                 MR. DUNLEA: Oh, definitely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So there is

         17  an advantage to you to occupy the existing

         18  structure?

         19                 MR. DUNLEA: Oh, absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And is that

         21  structure now occupied?

         22                 MR. DUNLEA: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's

         24  abandoned or empty.

         25                 MR. DUNLEA: That's correct. That's
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          2  correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, you will

          4  be occupying a basically empty structure?

          5                 MR. DUNLEA: Yes, well, it says here,

          6  I think it says here, and George, maybe George could

          7  say something to this, but this area here is so far

          8  off the beaten track that, you know, if you have

          9  some garbage you want to get rid of, this is the

         10  place you bring it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I'm

         12  somewhat familiar with the area. Although it's so

         13  much, so remote in my own district that it's not an

         14  area that I go to. Frankly, you can't even get to it

         15  from the Bronx. You have to go through Westchester

         16  to get to this area, although the plant itself, or

         17  the building itself is in the Bronx.

         18                 But I did want to make a record, if

         19  we could, of some of the things you've answered so

         20  that we can respond to some of the concerns of my

         21  colleague, who has some legitimate concerns I think,

         22  but I think you've answered them, so thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: We've been

         25  joined by Council Member David Yassky.
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          2                 Council Member Yassky.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          4  Acting Chair James.

          5                 I'm chairing a hearing across the way

          6  at City Hall so I apologize for missing the bulk of

          7  this. I've spoken with the staff, my staff has, of

          8  Council Member Koppell and also Council Member

          9  Palma, who I guess is the rest of the zone, and I

         10  understand they are enthusiastic and everything I

         11  have heard says that this is a very worthwhile

         12  project. So, I hope this expansion goes through

         13  speedily.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JAMES: Council

         17  Member Yassky is my neighbor in Downtown Brooklyn,

         18  and maybe you'll consider relocated somewhere in

         19  Downtown Brooklyn. In any event, thank you for your

         20  testimony.

         21                 Next panel is Jeremie Stutter (sic),

         22  Sautter, from HPEDC, and George Llanos from BOEDC.

         23                 You may begin.

         24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good afternoon,

         25  Chair and Council Members. I'm very happy to be here
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          2  with both Jeremie Sautter, who is the Empire Zone

          3  Coordinator, and George Llanos, who also worked for

          4  me for several years in identifying companies and

          5  working with companies to settle into Hunts Point.

          6                 Mr. Sautter is going to read the

          7  testimony, but I just wanted to say that in terms of

          8  where it is and how this gentleman came to us, I was

          9  struck by his sincerity. Bronx for me is the Bronx

         10  and Hunts Point is very important, but when I saw

         11  the challenging that he was moving to, I thought of

         12  the Hunts Point, the way it looked before, and what

         13  I saw in this gentleman was that he could possibly

         14  turn that whole area around, and what you need is a

         15  leader in an area who can help clean up the mess

         16  that's there, and then Hunts Point has been very

         17  successful, and I really believe that this gentleman

         18  is going to do very well in the North Bronx. We need

         19  help there also. So, I'm very happy to support him

         20  in his goals, and he's been very consistent,

         21  constant, and anything in the Bronx anywhere is

         22  welcome. Thank you.

         23                 Go ahead, Jeremie.

         24                 MR. SAUTTER: Good afternoon,

         25  Chairlady James, Chairman White, and members of the
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          2  Committee on Economic Development.

          3                 My name is Jeremie Sautter, and I am

          4  the Coordinator for the Hunts Point Empire Zone,

          5  working for the Hunts Point Economic Development

          6  Corporation headed by Josephine Infante. I'm happy

          7  to testify before you today regarding Intro. 779 for

          8  Regionally Significant Project Designation for Bronx

          9  Westchester Tempering Corp.

         10                 The Hunts Point Economic Development

         11  Corporation is a non-profit organization

         12  administering the Hunts Point Empire Zone on behalf

         13  of the Mayor's Office of Industrial and

         14  Manufacturing Businesses, and the New York State

         15  Empire State Development Corporation.

         16                 Since 1994, HPD has been assisting

         17  businesses to apply for and obtain the New York

         18  State Tax Incentives aimed at anchoraging job growth

         19  and business growth.

         20                 Since 1994, the Hunts Point Empire

         21  Zone has assisted more than 200 businesses, and

         22  leveraged the creation of more than 3,000 net new

         23  jobs and $300 million in private investment.

         24                 For more than a year now, I have been

         25  working closely with Tim Dunlea, Bob Greenberg,
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          2  Leslie Ramos, of the New York City Mayor's Office,

          3  with the New York City Economic Development

          4  Corporation, and recently with the New York City

          5  Legislative Office.

          6                 I have been hard working and I

          7  believe all parties involved have been hard working,

          8  because we all see the importance of this project.

          9                 When Mr. Dunlea came to our office a

         10  year ago soliciting our help, I immediately

         11  recognized that this project will have a powerful

         12  longlasting impact on the Bronx and on the creation

         13  of invaluable economic opportunities for New York

         14  City families.

         15                 Bronx Westchester Tempering

         16  Corporation is not only bringing 60 net new jobs to

         17  our City, they are bringing 60 quality jobs.

         18                 The positions to be created are all

         19  skilled, and will offer salaries at ranging $15 to

         20  $25 an hour.

         21                 These are salaries that are needed in

         22  our City to support families.

         23                 What is more, the principals will use

         24  their combined experience of 50 years of the

         25  industry and personally train every single one of
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          2  the new hirees that is a real commitment.

          3                 The new workers will require skills

          4  in machine operations, software programming, and

          5  more. Skills that are invalable in today's economy

          6  and are highly transferrable to many careers.

          7                 These opportunities will benefit New

          8  York City residents. Mr. Dunlea has committed in

          9  writing to giving priority to Bronx and New York

         10  City residents when it comes to hiring and has

         11  already established a relationship with the New York

         12  City Workforce 1 employment system, which has a

         13  direct connection with the Mayor's Office of

         14  Industrial and Manufacturing Business.

         15                 Through his history as a business

         16  owner, Mr. Dunlea has demonstrated a commitment to

         17  hire locally, as more than 60 percent of his

         18  employees currently are local.

         19                 For all these reasons, we at the

         20  Hunts Point Economic Development Corporation

         21  strongly feel that this project strongly fulfills

         22  the mission of the Empire Zone Program of creating

         23  economic opportunities in distressed areas.

         24                 We are proud to join Councilman

         25  Koppell, Councilwoman Palma and the Bronx Community
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          2  Board 12 in supporting a project that will make such

          3  a difference for our City.

          4                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          5  testify, and I will be pleased to answer any

          6  questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you.

          8                 Can you explain to the Committee

          9  about the Hunts Point Empowerment Zone business plan

         10  and how the Bronx Westchester Tempering Corporation

         11  fits into that plan?

         12                 MR. SAUTTER: Yes, of course.

         13                 The Hunts Point Empire Zone

         14  Development Plan, the Code Number 1 of the plan is

         15  job creation and investment.

         16                 The project plans to create 60 net

         17  new jobs, and invest more than $4 million of private

         18  investment. So, right from the beginning, it

         19  fulfills the most important goal of the Zone

         20  Development Plan.

         21                 Also in the Zone Development Plan, a

         22  strategic industry targeted for assistance are

         23  manufacturers, manufacturers, and clearly this is a

         24  manufacturing project that will bring skilled

         25  positions to our City.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

          3                 What documentation do you require

          4  from businesses seeking to be designated as a

          5  regional significant project?

          6                 MR. SAUTTER: There is a lot of

          7  documentation. There has been a project that has

          8  started about nine months ago, and there is an

          9  application that has to be filled out by the

         10  company, and that has to be approved first zone by

         11  the Empire Zone and three boards, which was done in

         12  October, and then it has to be submitted to the

         13  Empire State Development Corporation for preliminary

         14  approval, and an approval letter was issued by Randy

         15  Coburn, President and Director of the Empire Zones

         16  Program in March.

         17                 I'm sorry, the City, of course,

         18  approves the project. The City actually chairs the

         19  Empire Zone Administrative Board.

         20                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And the City

         21  has to go, again, through the process of monitoring

         22  that this type of application is acceptable and they

         23  did approve it, and pretty quickly.

         24                 One of the things that has happened

         25  to the Hunts Point Economic Zone, or Empire Zone, is

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  that we've expanded from Hunts Point to Zorega

          3  (phonetic). So when that happened, when the

          4  application came to us for this special, this

          5  special application, we thought it was natural. And

          6  as Councilwoman Palma knows, he will be employing

          7  people from Hunts Point and from Zorega, and we are

          8  going to make sure that that happens.

          9                 What I love about this is the quality

         10  jobs. You know, it's not like some of the jobs in

         11  Hunts Point that have to do with, you know, again,

         12  warehousing. These are quality type of jobs, that as

         13  the owner said, that they can go anywhere. It's very

         14  important quality training.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: On March 25th,

         16  '08, Empire State Development made a preliminary

         17  determination of eligibility of the Bronx

         18  Westchester Tempering Corporation as a Regional

         19  Significant Project.

         20                 Did you submit anything to ESD in

         21  support of the Bronx Westchester request?

         22                 MR. SAUTTER: Yes. As I mentioned,

         23  there was an application that was submitted by the

         24  Hunts Point Zone Administrative Board. This

         25  application included the projections of jobs, the
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          2  projections of net new jobs and the projections of

          3  investments, and their project narrative as well.

          4  These are all the parts of the DC 5 application that

          5  was submitted by the Empire Zone, Hunts Point Empire

          6  Zone Board and the City to Empire State Development

          7  Corporation.

          8                 In the letter that you mentioned on

          9  March 2008, the Empire State Development Corporation

         10  actually spells out in detail the requirements of

         11  the State from this company in terms of job

         12  creation. They actually give a calendar of required

         13  job creation. I believe 12 and a half jobs for the

         14  first year of operation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         16                 Just let me just give you my

         17  assessment so far, in terms of the Empire Zones, you

         18  know, just overall, and the administrative aspect of

         19  it in terms of job creation and documentation to

         20  follow the fact that whether or not those that have

         21  this designation fulfilled its obligation to job

         22  creation and to employment.

         23                 So far, and I stand corrected, I have

         24  yet to get the number of jobs that have been

         25  created, the documentation of that creation, the
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          2  sustainability of those individuals keeping those

          3  jobs over an extended period of time. I mean, many

          4  promises have been made, but the documentation in

          5  terms of hiring people in the immediate area and

          6  things of that nature, and I believe there was a

          7  report on the part of the State Comptroller's Office

          8  that stated that, that cited to some degree the lack

          9  of sufficient documentation in terms of job creation

         10  in the various zones. So, I'm just pointing it out

         11  to you, since you mentioned the fact that there is

         12  going to be significant jobs. And those jobs are

         13  going to be like maybe transferrable and upscale

         14  jobs, and it sounds good but it is yet to be seen

         15  and I hope that you are successful in those

         16  endeavors.

         17                 So, do you want to respond to that?

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chairman, I

         19  just wanted to say, the one -- I've been in Hunts

         20  Point for 20 years, and the one significant program

         21  that turned Hunts Point around was the Empire Zone,

         22  not the Empowerment Zone.

         23                 Why? Because it helped smaller

         24  businesses.

         25                 The Empowerment Zone helped big
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          2  businesses, it just happened that way.  But in all

          3  of the years, and I was the one who pushed it for

          4  Hunts Point, the Empire Zone, marketing, creation of

          5  jobs, nothing better than Empire Zone.

          6                 I know there are problems in other

          7  zones, but in this zone, this is one of the

          8  ingredients that really blew it open and helped

          9  attract businesses to the area, and it's

         10  wall-to-wall businesses right now. And what we have

         11  is not enough people working.

         12                 You know, this type of, you know,

         13  this type of business manufacturing is the ideal

         14  business, and I think he has a choice as to where he

         15  wants to be, and he was really determined, but the

         16  types of jobs that he was talking about were great.

         17  And I'm so, so happy that we can offer a hand after

         18  fighting so much to get it in Hunts Point 20 years

         19  ago. It's worked well for us, and there is

         20  sustainability where we are.

         21                 I don't know about anywhere else, but

         22  in the businesses in New York City, I've seen the

         23  Empire Zone working in ours, win/win.

         24                 MR. SAUTTER: If I may have, every

         25  year the zone publishes a zone annual report with
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          2  the results of net new job creation, and in 2006

          3  Hunts Point was number one in the City with 1,195

          4  net new jobs created.

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And the report,

          6  I think it was 95 percent, everyone sent in the

          7  report, it was just excellent.

          8                 We have an exciting place and we

          9  don't mind sharing the joy.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: All right. Do you

         11  have documentation to that effect?

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Could you supply

         14  it to me, please?

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I'd appreciate it.

         17                 And I would like to thank you very

         18  much for appearing before the Committee.

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I think this

         20  gentleman here also has to --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would like

         22  to say a couple of things just briefly. First of

         23  all, I know what change has come to Hunts Point over

         24  the last 20 years, and all those affiliated and

         25  associated ought to be certainly to be congratulated
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          2  for what you've accomplished.

          3                 Also, we have seen over the past also

          4  20 years, maybe more, the flight of manufacturing

          5  jobs from the City of New York, and unfortunately,

          6  or I don't know, maybe unfortunately is the wrong

          7  preface, we need these kind of jobs for people who

          8  have certain skills but are not highly educated, and

          9  they need good paying manufacturing jobs, what you

         10  might have called "old fashioned manufacturing

         11  jobs," which are being offered here. And it's kind

         12  of refreshing in many ways to see these kind of jobs

         13  to be created in the New York, because we've seen

         14  hundreds of thousands of these jobs flee with the

         15  disappearance, for instance, of the garment

         16  industry, as one particular example, but many other.

         17  In the printing industry, the garment industry,

         18  those industries have disappeared from New York. And

         19  all of those had jobs that people were eligible for

         20  those jobs without necessarily having a college

         21  degree, and these jobs are similar kinds of jobs.

         22  They become skilled jobs because you learn on the

         23  job, but they're eligible to people who may not be

         24  graduates of a college. And, so, I think they're

         25  very important.

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 And if we can create 60 jobs here, I

          3  know it's not, you know, it's not huge, but it's a

          4  very worthwhile, a very worthwhile undertaking.

          5                 Now, I'm looking forward to opening

          6  day at the factory.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We all are.

          8                 When we think of 60 jobs, I also,

          9  every time I look at Hunts Point and all the men

         10  that are -- all the men and women that are working

         11  there, I think of 60 families that are going to be

         12  fed, and when you see the depth of despair and the

         13  type of training and the type of, you know, they

         14  can't get a job from day-to-day, and you have to get

         15  them jackets, you have to -- you know, for someone

         16  to make a commitment here, it's a strong commitment,

         17  and we're going to make sure you keep that because

         18  it's 60 families more.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Identify yourself

         21  for the record again.

         22                 MR. GREENBERG: Yes, it's Bob

         23  Greenberg again.

         24                 And Mr. White brought up a point that

         25  I think a lot of people think about in terms of the
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          2  abuse of this program over the past 22 years now.

          3  But as I said before, it's turned around in not only

          4  how is it documented, which Jeremie can give you

          5  paperwork there and these annual, business annual

          6  reports that each company does, but more

          7  importantly, you don't  get an incentive unless you

          8  actually do something. If you want to fill out a New

          9  York State Department of Taxation and Finance form,

         10  and claim 20 jobs and get credit for 20 jobs when

         11  you only produce two, sure you can. Then you can do

         12  your time, well I don't know if they do time up here

         13  for that, but in the investment tax credit, if they

         14  don't put the $2 million into the business, and

         15  collect and actually put in for an incentive of $2

         16  million on the investment tax credit, that's the

         17  only way they're going to get it. They're not going

         18  to zap it up to 10 million, right?

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Correct.

         20                 MR. GREENBERG: But I think that's

         21  what's changed now, is that you actually have to do

         22  what you said you were going to do, in order to

         23  receive the benefits. And that's all.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay, I think

          3  Mr. Llanos.

          4                 MR. LLANOS: Okay. Good afternoon,

          5  Council. My name is George Llanos. I work with the

          6  Bronx Overall Economic Development Corp in the

          7  Bronx. It is the Borough President's Office of

          8  Economic Development and I just want to tell you

          9  about my relationship with Mr. Tim Dunlea.

         10                 I have two hats. I am also the

         11  Eastchester IBZ Coordinator under the Mayor's Office

         12  of Industrial Manufacturing Businesses.

         13                 BOEDC contracts Eastchester, as well

         14  as Orega. But the Borough President has about six

         15  guys throughout the Bronx helping businesses on a

         16  day-to-day basis. Various types of services being

         17  offered, and I am his guide for Community Board 11

         18  and 12 in which Tim Dunlea's business is located.

         19                 The way I came to know Mr. Tim Dunlea

         20  was through the community board. He had reached out

         21  to them asking for economic development assistance,

         22  and I went to visit his business to see exactly what

         23  that assistance was.

         24                 Come to find out, it was far more

         25  than what I ever thought I could do, but I'm glad
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          2  that the resources were appropriated to him in a

          3  timely manner.

          4                 We introduced Mr. Dunlea to the

          5  Community Board District Manager. We had a meeting

          6  probably in December, and we talked about this

          7  project called the Bronx Westchester Tempering Corp.

          8                 We also introduced him to the Chair

          9  of the Economic Committee, Mr. Larry Clark, and the

         10  project was approved unanimously. Meaning that, you

         11  know, everybody was in favor. When you talk about,

         12  at the time when I met Mr. Dunlea, it was 30 jobs.

         13  Today we're talking about 60. It could be 70 by the

         14  time the doors actually open. It's a good

         15  opportunity, not only for Bronx residents, but I

         16  think for neighboring counties as well, mostly for

         17  the Bronx hopefully.

         18                 Mr. Dunlea's business where the

         19  building is being purchased at is in a location of

         20  the Bronx that is almost, you know, there's hardly

         21  nothing there, honestly, it's in the back steps of

         22  the Borough.

         23                 He asked me to reach out to a

         24  government agency that could help him with clean-up.

         25  When you don't have a lot of traffic next to a
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          2  business area, when you don't have a lot of, you

          3  know, pedestrians going back and forth, it becomes a

          4  perfect site for illegal dumping.

          5                 We reached out to the local garage of

          6  the Department of Sanitation. We also reached out to

          7  the 47th Precinct to have them come and clear the

          8  debris and remove all these abandoned trucks and

          9  cars that were on the street.

         10                 It's a big problem in industrial

         11  manufacturing zones that you have these big trucks

         12  parking on City streets, taking up a lot of ample

         13  parking space, and just making it difficult to drive

         14  around. So, I think if this project does get

         15  approved, I believe it will, it would transform the

         16  area. We're talking about 60 jobs, we're also

         17  talking about 60 jobs, we're also talking about

         18  transforming the area of the place where he's going

         19  to be moving into.

         20                 We spoke about workforce development

         21  assistance. BOEDC is also a partner with the Small

         22  Business Services Division of New York.

         23                 We run the Bronx Business Solutions

         24  Center, which is on 149th Street. During my

         25  day-to-day activities in working with different
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          2  businesses, we talk about workforce development

          3  assistance. So, I know about the workforce

          4  development system that Mr. Dunlea is going to be

          5  following up with.

          6                 The turnaround is three to five

          7  business days. That's an exceptional amount of time

          8  to find an employee who can fit the bill, fit the

          9  job application that is being sought to help them

         10  with. So I'm glad to be a part of that.

         11                 I just want to say, you know, I hope

         12  the project goes forward. It's 60 good paying jobs.

         13  I'm a resident of the Bronx. I live in the Bronx. I

         14  work in the area that I serve, so I see what this

         15  kind of transformation can do to the community.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Are there any questions?

         20                 Okay, thank you very much.

         21                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I would like to

         23  ask, and I don't want to mess up your name, Bettina

         24  Damiani, from Good Jobs New York.

         25                 MS. DAMIANI: Good afternoon. My name
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          2  is Bettina Damiani, and I direct Good Jobs New York.

          3  We're a project of the Fiscal Policy Institute here

          4  in New York, and Good Jobs First based in

          5  Washington, D.C. Thank you for inviting us to

          6  testify today.

          7                 Good Jobs New York, along with many

          8  other good government groups and fiscal

          9  organizations believe that manufacturing businesses

         10  in this City need to thrive. They create by and

         11  large good jobs. They hire locally, and they are

         12  filling a hole for residents that don't have access

         13  to the dominant fire industry, the financial

         14  insurance and real estate industry, that also has

         15  great-paying jobs. We need to make sure we can fill

         16  that hole. And from speaking with staff and hearing

         17  testimony today, this sounds like a very well worth

         18  business to be in New York.

         19                 But our problem is not with the

         20  business itself, it's with the political process by

         21  which these programs are being created.

         22                 To say that empire zones have

         23  improved our fisc, is grossly misstated.  There are

         24  significant problems with the Empire Zone Program

         25  throughout the State, and our concern is that in a
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          2  time when legislators throughout the State are

          3  looking to revamp this program, our colleagues at

          4  the Fiscal Policy Institute, who have two economists

          5  on staff, are calling to have the program disbanded,

          6  New York City is looking to bring in more RSPs. This

          7  is the second one in about six months.

          8                 We're concerned this is going to

          9  become a trend. The problem with this particular

         10  zone is that it seems that the reason why this

         11  business is being created here is because it's a

         12  good place for them to do business, right?

         13                 Businesses make location decisions,

         14  mostly not on tax breaks, but do they have access to

         15  their workforce? Do they have competitors in the

         16  area? I mean, right here we hear from testimony

         17  earlier that this project is distributed in the

         18  tristate area where there are few competitors, but

         19  then later we want to give them resources so they

         20  can say competitive.

         21                 So, we need to make this very clear

         22  here. Why are these resources going to individual

         23  firms? The due diligence on behalf of the City seems

         24  weak at best, and this is, knowing that many of the

         25  Empire Zone Programs in New York City are run more
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          2  efficiently than those in the Upstate. We have said

          3  that on the record several times. But that's not to

          4  forget the fact that there is a reason why

          5  businesses locate in a certain area. And if they

          6  have access to building, which we understand they

          7  do, have they tried for other benefits that their

          8  programs are not so critical of?

          9                 For example, the New York City

         10  Industrial Development Agency, where there's, we

         11  believe, better reporting and due diligence on

         12  whether somebody is creating the jobs. How about the

         13  Industrial Commercial Incentive Program, where even

         14  though right now it's looking to be revamped, Good

         15  Jobs New York would never advocate that the

         16  manufacturing part of the ICIP program not still be

         17  included.

         18                 So, I think we have to have a better

         19  understanding of what motivates businesses to be

         20  some place, and also to make sure that we have a

         21  better sense of what the subsidies that they're

         22  already eligible for, instead of including a program

         23  that has been questioned throughout the State.

         24                 Earlier this year, when they were

         25  talking about these letters that went out, actually
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          2  only 32, not even 32, 26 companies were removed from

          3  the Empire Zone Program out of 3,000 letters. There

          4  is a great hole on due diligence and follow-up for

          5  the Empire Zone Program.

          6                 So, we encourage that if the City

          7  wants to do RSPs, that instead of doing them

          8  piecemeal, the way they're being done now, put in

          9  strong processes and due diligence in reporting

         10  requirements to make sure that we're investing money

         11  in businesses that truly need it. And then if they

         12  don't create those jobs, that there is going to be

         13  clawbacks, that somebody doesn't get cut off from

         14  future benefits, which unfortunately seems to be

         15  very much the pattern with this Administration.

         16  Metlife and Pfizer are just two examples of firms

         17  that have gotten egregious subsidies, and then

         18  instead of having to pay back any of the subsidy,

         19  the Bloomberg Administration thinks just cutting off

         20  future subsidies is painful enough, I would argue

         21  that it's not.

         22                 And when these big businesses get

         23  these kind egregious tax breaks, it's shifting the

         24  tax burden to smaller businesses that are doing the

         25  right thing, that are creating opportunities for
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          2  good paying jobs and giving them skills.

          3                 So the issue isn't so much with this

          4  particular business, we encourage these kind of

          5  businesses in New York. This is a great place for

          6  them to do business. They are here because they know

          7  they can do well here. They're not going to Jersey

          8  because there's a reason for that. I trust their

          9  business plan and it chose the Bronx. And whether

         10  it's for the tax incentives or not hasn't been made

         11  clear I think to the public.

         12                 So, thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Do you believe

         14  that there are specific criteria that the Council

         15  should use in evaluating whether or not to authorize

         16  designation of a business as a regional significant

         17  project?

         18                 If so, what should there be?

         19                 MS. DAMIANI: Right now almost any

         20  business can be considered an RSP. I think there is

         21  some talk right now about a new office being built,

         22  offices that are being built in Long Island City.

         23  There is no reason, for example, why the Dinie's

         24  (phonetic) for example, which was in Long Island

         25  City, and I think got the Jamaica Zone benefits, why
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          2  an office tower in Long Island City can't get RSPs,

          3  because the law right now would allow that.

          4                 When there is opportunities to make a

          5  program more efficient and make sure that it

          6  benefits small businesses, we think those

          7  opportunities should be taken.

          8                 So, for the City Council to approve

          9  another RSP, when it hasn't addressed the concerns

         10  that we had particularly about it being a benefit to

         11  possible very large successful businesses in the

         12  future, I think is key.

         13                 We have to make sure that if this

         14  program is continued in New York, that it benefits

         15  small businesses, and isn't taken advantage of the

         16  way it has in other parts of the State.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Any specific

         18  criteria?

         19                 MS. DAMIANI: Keeping track of the

         20  jobs. There's been discussion of these are very

         21  high-paying jobs, because they're high-skilled jobs.

         22  These are the jobs you want in New York. But I think

         23  we need to make sure there is due diligence and

         24  follow-up, that those jobs are generally being

         25  created, and what will happen if they are not.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 Councilman Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think, you

          6  know, I do think your general point that the program

          7  may be overly generous, or maybe offered to

          8  companies that don't need the benefit is a

          9  legitimate concern. As you may or may not know, I

         10  served in the legislature in Albany, and we've had a

         11  number of programs that have been viewed this way.

         12  One or two of them actually did get ultimately

         13  cancelled after some of the abuses were identified.

         14                 On the other hand, the authorization

         15  for this program is primarily on the State basis, is

         16  it not?

         17                 MS. DAMIANI: It is. But my

         18  understanding is the Council, within itself, could

         19  create specific criteria so that only certain types

         20  of businesses could be eligible.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, it's

         22  possible we could do that, but I'm nor sure we could

         23  do it, to tell you the truth.

         24                 And if we were to create those

         25  criteria, my impression is that if we were to create
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          2  those criteria, we haven't done so.

          3                 But this business would particularly

          4  fit those criteria, because it's manufacturing jobs,

          5  there is reaching out to hire local workers, they

          6  are hiring low-income workers, they get extra

          7  incentives if they hire people from low-income

          8  background and they seem to be willing to do that.

          9                 So, while I think your comments are

         10  interesting and important, don't misunderstand, I

         11  think the Committee, I don't serve on this

         12  Committee, but I would recommend to the Chair that

         13  the Chair look into the issue of creating criteria.

         14                 But I would urge the Chair, and I'm

         15  not really directing this at you right now, not to

         16  hold up this particular application, in order to

         17  accomplish the objectives that I think have some

         18  merit.

         19                 But here, I think we particularly

         20  have a business, we're not talking about some sort

         21  of, you know, frilly business that doesn't need

         22  incentives, to locate in a place like the North

         23  Bronx, this particular area, where it's been really

         24  neglected and under-developed. We welcome the

         25  development there.
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          2                 So, while I don't disagree with your

          3  objective, and I don't know enough about the whole

          4  program as a program to say whether it's a great

          5  program on an overall state basis, I do feel that

          6  this particular business happens to fit the criteria

          7  that I would look for in a business to be benefitted

          8  by these kind of incentives.

          9                 And, so, you know, I ask you to take

         10  that into account.

         11                 MS. DAMIANI: And certainly I think

         12  there are rare opportunities for groups to speak out

         13  regarding programs like this. And when people do

         14  maybe programs like the Empire Zone Program or the

         15  variety of 9/11 resources that were allocated, if

         16  people were able to speak out about them early would

         17  prevent abuses in the future. So, we appreciate the

         18  opportunity.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Well, let me just

         21  say, we appreciate the opportunity and your

         22  constructive criticism concerning this issue, and

         23  we'll take it under advisement. And what we're going

         24  to do now is, there is no one else that's going to

         25  testify, we're going to leave this particular issue
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          2  open for a vote at another time, very shortly, and

          3  we want to thank you for participate in this

          4  meeting.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just would

          6  like to thank the Chair for scheduling this, and I

          7  hope that the matter can be taken up by the -- I

          8  know it's not the practice to vote the same day as

          9  the hearing and there has to be another meeting. I

         10  hope another meeting will be soon because I think

         11  that we want to move ahead with this project.

         12                 I think you heard enough to know that

         13  this is a very good project for the Bronx in general

         14  and since it's in my district, for my district. And

         15  I'll be very proud to be the sponsor of this.

         16  Because to open a factory at this particular

         17  location will be a very exciting development.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Well, quite

         19  naturally, the professional courtesy will be

         20  extended to my colleague, Councilwoman Palma, who is

         21  one of the sponsors of this initiative, and so am I,

         22  and maybe you'll have a conversation with her and we

         23  will act as expeditiously as possible so that we can

         24  go into this new fiscal year on better footing.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay? All right.

          3  And I'm going to leave the record open. And I want

          4  to thank everybody for coming and the meeting now is

          5  adjourned. Thank you very much.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 2:39 p.m.)
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